
 

 
 

 
 

         11 March 2016 
 
 

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Monday, 21 March 2016 

beginning at 
7:30 pm 

at 
Botley Community Centre, Recreation Ground, High Street, Botley, SO30 2ES 

 

***PLEASE NOTE CHANGE OF TIME AND VENUE*** 

 
 
TO: Councillor Rupert Kyrle (Chairman) 
 Councillor Daniel Clarke (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Margaret Allingham 
Councillor Janice Asman Councillor Louise Bloom 
Councillor Carol Boulton Councillor Jerry Hall 
Councillor Keith House Councillor Angel Myerscough 
Councillor Emma Norman Councillor Derek Pretty 
Councillor Bruce Tennent Councillor Jane Welsh 

 
Staff Contacts: Cheryll Kemsley, Democratic Services Officer Tel: 023 8068 8112;   

Email: cheryll.kemsley@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 Julia Birt, Local Area Co-ordinator Tel: 023 8068 8437;           

Email: julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings 

as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 
other languages, upon request. 

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 
Services Officer above. 

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public. 

 

Eastleigh House 
Upper  Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


AGENDA 
 

1. Public Participation     
 
2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 10)  

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 March 2016. 
  
3. Apologies     
 
4. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

  
5. Presentation on Planning Guidelines     
 
6. Planning Application - Land north and east of Boorley Green, Botley, 

Southampton, SO32 2BX    (Pages 11 - 34)  

 Reserved matters application (pursuant to outline planning permission O/12/71514 
which was subject to an Environmental Impact Assessment) for the erection of 
441no. dwellings, car parking, road infrastructure, pedestrian/cycle links, foul and 
surface water drainage networks, landscaping and associated works (phase 1). 
This application includes the diversion of Footpath no.2. (Ref: R/15/77595) 

  
7. Planning Appeals      

 The Head of Legal and Democratic Services to report that the following appeal had 
been dismissed:- 
 
F/15/76253 – Appeal against the refusal of application for the construction of a four 
bedroom detached dwelling to incorporate alterations to ground levels and 
provision of associated retaining structures following demolition of existing garage 
at 78 Bursledon Road, Hedge End. 

 
This was a delegated decision. 

  
8. Funding for Local Projects    (Pages 35 - 38) 
 
9. Hedge end Train Station Area Parking Proposals    (Pages 39 - 42) 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Monday, 13 June 2016 at 7:00 pm 

in the Hedge End 2000 Centre, St John's 
Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news - 

 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s happening in 

the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates with news as it 
happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus lots more. 

www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


1 
 

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 7 March 2016  (7:00 pm – 9:51 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Kyrle (Chairman); Councillors Clarke, Allingham, Asman, Hall, 
House, Myerscough, Norman, Tennent and Welsh 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bloom, Boulton and 
Pretty 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

1. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
There was none on this occasion. 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 January 2016 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Bruce Tennent declared an Interest in Agenda item 9, Planning 
Application - Land at Hatch Farm, North of Barbe Baker Avenue West 
End, Southampton, because he lived at the other end of Barbe Baker 
Avenue.  
 

4. RECOMMENDATIONS OF HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY 
YOUTH COUNCIL FOR YOUTH GRANTS 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Area Co-ordinator in 
partnership with the Hedge End, West End and Botley (HEWEB) Youth 
Council, that invited Members to endorse the recommendations of this 
year’s Youth Grants Panel and to extend their thanks to the volunteers 
who had participated in the decision making process. 
 
The Chairman proffered the Committee’s thanks to the Youth Council and 
asked that its best wishes be passed to Joshua Buckle, Chair of HEWEB 
Youth Council, who unfortunately had flu and was unable to attend the 
meeting. He added that he was delighted that young people were 
passionate about their community and Joshua would be very welcome to 
address the Committee at a future meeting if he wished.  
 

1

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

RESOLVED –  
 
(1) That the recommendations of the Hedge End, West End, and 

Botley (HEWEB) Youth Council for youth grants be endorsed 
as shown in Appendix 1 to the report; 

 
(2) That thanks be extended to members of the Youth Grants 

Panel; and 
 
(3) That £4,000 be allocated to enable local youth grants to be 

awarded in 2017. 
 
(NOTE: Donna Love, Hedge End Town Council Youth Team Leader, 
spoke with regards to how the decisions had been made.) 
 

5. CHAIRMAN'S REPORT 
 
The Chairman reported the following: 
 
Welcome 

Janice Asman had been recently elected as the Borough councillor for 
West End North. He would therefore like to welcome Councillor Asman to 
her first local area committee meeting. 

Sports Awards 

 
Eastleigh’s Sport and Physical Activity Alliance had recently held its 
annual sports awards. There was an excellent representation from those 
residing in Hedge End, West End and Botley (HEWEB) or participating in a 
club within the local area resulting in 9 nominations within the 13 
categories. Special congratulations went to Dan Rush, Senior Volunteer; 
Stuart O’Connor, Performance Coach and Keith Richardson for Service to 
Sport as they won their categories. Both Dan and Stuart were coaches at 
the Poseidon Boxing Club based at the Ageas Bowl. 
 
Committee funded projects 

 
Pedestrian bridge near Mallet Close, Hedge End - the previous bridge 
had to be replaced due to extensive damage to the handrails and surface. 
This Committee had agreed to fund a replacement bridge which had now 
been installed. It was of a similar wooden design, in keeping with the 
surrounding area.  
 
Bus shelter, Winchester Street, Botley - following a request for end 
panels to be added to the new bus shelter, the Committee approved 
funding and these works had now been completed. 
 
The pathway leading from Lower Northam Road to the Hedge End 
Medical Centre - works had started again. The hedge had been removed 

2



3 
 

and the Council was now waiting for Virgin Media to complete their works. 
Once this had happened, works on the path could commence. The Council 
had received an apology from Virgin Media for the delay. The Partners at 
the Surgery had also agreed to fund the relining of the Centre’s car park 
once the pathway was completed.  
 
Friday Night Football - Botley 

 
These sessions enabled those aged 10 -19 to take part in recreational 
weekly football sessions for just £1. The numbers attending were very 
impressive ranging from 50 - 60 per week. This project was already 
supported by this Committee, the HEWEB Youth Partnership, and Botley 
Parish Council. The Chairman was pleased to announce that as a result of 
discussions with the football coaches and the Chair of the HEWEB Youth 
Partnership, White and Co. a local removals company from Botley, had 
just provided £500 in sponsorship which would help to sustain the 
sessions and continue to ensure that they were affordable and accessible 
for local young people. 
 

6. AREA CO-ORDINATOR'S REPORT 
 
The Area Co-ordinator reported the following: 
 
Mill Gardens, West End 
 
The proposed play area within the new development at Mill Gardens had 
been delayed, firstly as a result of unsatisfactory site inspections, and now 
the Council had learnt that Southern Water was proposing to route a water 
pipe across the open space earmarked for the play area. Council officers 
had held a site meeting with Southern Water and discussions were 
continuing. This matter would also be raised at West End Parish Council’s 
meeting on Wednesday 9 March.  
 
Responses to residents’ and councillors’ requests 
 
Litter bins - during the past few months, residents had been requesting 
an increasing number of litter bins. When these requests were received, 
the Council’s Streetscene staff visited the area and made a judgement as 
to whether a bin was required. As a result, this Committee had funded 
additional or replacement bins at West End Copse, Drummond Road in 
Hedge End, and Pudbrook in Botley, with an additional bin supplied by 
Botley Parish Council.  
 
Midlands Estate - residents were concerned about motorists taking 
shortcuts across the grass adjacent to the traffic lights and the road within 
the Estate. The Chairman and local ward members had agreed to fund the 
installation of some wooden posts to prevent this practice. Since taking 
this action, there had been no further concerns reported. 
 

3



4 
 

Grass verges - due to the wet weather and the continued practice of 
parking on the verges, residents had been complaining about the condition 
of the grass. Hampshire Highways were responsible for the maintenance 
of the verges and this Committee was working with officers to identify 
hotspot areas, such as Paxton Close and Mortimer Road, and would then 
agree a works programme subject to funding. 
 
Hedge End Train Station - a number of fences around the station’s car 
park had been vandalised and a litter bin was damaged. The Committee 
funded some urgent repairs which were carried out by the Council’s small 
works team. 
 
Moorgreen Hospital - residents and local councillors were concerned 
when the developer installed directional signage to the new development 
which was incorrect. The Council had confirmed with Barratts that there 
was to be no construction access off Moorgreen Road. There were also 
concerns about the displacement of parking once the development 
commenced. The health authorities were in discussions with the 
management team at the Ageas Bowl to determine whether there could be 
some temporary parking on its site. Local retailers had also been 
contacted. NHS Property Services had planning permission for an 
amended parking scheme on the remainder of the site but this would not 
commence before the building works. 
 

7. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES 
 
Development Management staff gave a short presentation on guidelines 
that had to be taken into account when determining planning applications; 
in particular the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account.  
This was set against the broader policy framework. 
 

8. PLANNING APPLICATION - LAND AT HATCH FARM, NORTH OF 
BARBE BAKER AVENUE WEST END, SOUTHAMPTON 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda item 9) concerning an application for the 
construction of 98no. dwellings with access from Barbe Baker Avenue and 
Barnsland, associated landscaping, parking, new footpath, children’s play 
area, attenuation pond and diversion of 3no. public rights of way. (Ref: 
F/15/77718) 
 
The Committee was advised of a number of updates including the 
following: 
 
• Drainage – Plans had been received with indicative swales 

location, further information on the capacity of attenuation pond and 
the flow rate  

• Attenuation pond – cross section had been provided. Parks and 
Open Space Manager had agreed the 1:4 gradient slope to bank 
around the pond 

4



5 
 

• Consultees 
– No objection from the Parks and Open Space Manager 
– No objection from the Environment Agency 
– No response from either Hampshire County Council Rights 

of Way, or Southern Water Gas Network  
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the decision be delegated to the Head of Development 
Management in consultation with the Chairman and Vice Chairman of 
Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee to PERMIT 
subject to: 
  
(1) The recommended conditions and reasons; 

 
(2) The receipt of amended plans to include minor revisions to the 

site plan, elevations, and the submission of a boundary 
treatment strategy; 

 
(3) The receipt of the Biodiversity Officer’s comments on water 

quality protection measures and the submission of the 2012/13 
ecology reports; 

 
(4) The conclusion of the viability discussions; 
 
(5) The completion of a Section106 agreement to secure 

improvements to Public Open Space, highway improvements, 
sustainable transport, community infrastructure and affordable 
housing; and 

 
(6) The following additional condition and reason: 

 
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country 
Planning [General Permitted Development] Order 1995 [or any 
order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without 
modification], the properties hereby approved shall not be 
extended at first floor level or above without the prior written 
consent of the Local Planning Authority. Reason: To protect 
the amenities of the locality and to maintain a good quality 
environment. 

 
(NOTE: (a) The Chair of Hatch Farm Preservation Residents’ Association 
and six other members of the public spoke in objection to the application 
citing a number of issues including: loss of open space; that it was Council 
owned land; should be reviewed by a third person; overlooking; flooding, 
drainage, steepness of slope; traffic problems; undesirable location; 
alternative sites were better; out of character; visible from high ground; 
local surgery at its peak; not listened to; forty householder objections; 
compromises privacy; intrusive; height of public footpath; noise; over 
development of West End; defer to conduct a full and proper research; not 

5



6 
 

enough ecological surveys done; public have been misguided; and roads 
become a river when it floods, and (b) the agent for the applicant spoke in 
support of the application, (c) a recorded vote was requested, and duly 
supported, in respect of Agenda item 9, the result of which was as follows: 
 
FOR: Councillors Allingham, Asman, Clarke, House, Kyrle, Myerscough, 
Norman, and Welsh 
 
AGAINST: Councillors Hall and Tennent. 
 
FOR: 8; AGAINST: 2) 
 

9. PLANNING APPLICATION - 1 PUDBROOKE GARDENS, HEDGE END. 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda item 10) concerning an application for the change 
of use from domestic dwelling (C3) to residential care home (C2) (Ref: 
F/15/77732) 
 
The Committee was advised of the following: 
 
 No additional representations had been received. 
 No objection from the Head of Transportation and Engineering. 
 Amendment to Condition 1 to include an additional plan number, 

‘E/204/PP’. 
 An additional condition and reason. 
 
RESOLVED – 
 
That permission be GRANTED subject to: 
 
(1) The recommended conditions and reasons; 
 
(2) Condition 1 be amended to read: 
 

The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in 
accordance with the following plans numbered; Loc01 and 
E/204/PP. Reason: for the avoidance of doubt and in the 
interests of proper planning; and 

 
(3) The following additional condition and reason: 
 

The development hereby approved shall be used as a 
residential care home and for no other purpose [including any 
other purpose in Class C2 of the Schedule to the Town and 
Country Planning [Use Classes] Order 1987, or in any 
provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument 
revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without 
modification]. Reason: In the interests of highway safety and 
local amenity. 

6



7 
 

 
(NOTE: (a) One member of public spoke in objection to the application 
citing traffic, limited parking, increased car noise; limited access for 
emergency vehicles; pedestrian safety issues; run as a business; 
increased parking in the road would compromise the street as a place of 
recreation; and shared sewer line and drainage issues; (b) the Chairman 
also read a letter from another resident who raised similar issues; and (c) 
the applicant spoke in support of the application.)  
 

10. PLANNING APPEALS 
 
The Head of Legal and Democratic Services to report:- 
 
(a) that the following appeals had been lodged:- 
 

T/15/77199 - Appeal against the Council’s refusal of application to 
carry out works to protected trees at 15 Dumbleton Close, Kanes 
Hill, Southampton  
 
This was a delegated decision 
 
F/15/77145 - Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning 
permission for a first floor side extension at 229 Cranbourne Park, 
Hedge End, Southampton. SO30 0PA  
 
This was a delegated decision. 
 
F/15/77244 – Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning 
permission for change of use from A1 (retail) to A5 (hot food 
takeaway). Installation of extractor ventilation system and flue at 
Hedge End Butchers, 5A Lower Northam Road, Hedge End, 
Southampton, SO30 4FN. 
 
This was a delegated decision 

 
(b) that the following appeals had been dismissed:- 
 

F/15/75840 – Appeal against the refusal of application for the 
erection of 2No.three bedroom dwellings with associated car 
parking and amenity space at land to the rear of 82 St Johns Road, 
Hedge End, Hampshire, SO30 4DF. 
 
This was a delegated decision. 
 
F/15/76328 – Appeal against the refusal of application for the a first 
floor extension to the existing ground floor footprint at 1 Marvin 
Way, Botley, Hampshire SO30 2EG. 
 
This was a delegated decision. 
 

7



8 
 

C/15/76670 - Appeal against the refusal of application for the 
erection of a pitched roof over the existing flat roof garage at The 
Shambles, 45 High Street, Botley. 
 
This was a delegated decision. 
 
F/14/75261 – Appeal against the refusal of application for ‘an 
extension in my garden to give me a second bedroom’ at 61 
Cheltenham Gardens, Hedge End 
 

This was a delegated decision. 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

11. ALLOCATION OF DEVELOPERS' CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
Consideration was given to the joint report of the Head of Transportation 
and Engineering, with the Head of Development Management and Chief 
Financial Officer that sought approval for funding from this Committee’s 
Community Investment Programme (CIP) for feasibility and 
implementation of local transportation schemes prioritised by this 
Committee. 
 
RESOLVED -  
 
That the allocation of Developers’ Contributions held within this 
Committee’s Community Investment Programme (CIP) for feasibility 
and implementation of prioritised transport schemes, as listed in 
Appendix 1 to the report, be approved. 
 

12. NAMING OF STREETS, FORMER MOORGREEN HOSPITAL SITE, 
WEST END 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Transportation and 
Engineering which recommended street names on a new housing 
development.  
 
West End Parish Council had suggested the following street names that 
had been proposed following a meeting of their Planning and Highways 
Committee on 19 January 2016. 
 
Bamber Close - named after the late Dr Claude Bamber who was the GP 
medical lead in West End during the 1960s - 1980s, as well as long 
serving Hampshire County Councillor. 
 
Noyce Court - named after the late Tony Noyce who was former Mayor of 
Eastleigh as well as long standing Eastleigh Borough and West End 
Parish Councillor. 

8



9 
 

 
RESOLVED -     
 
That the names Bamber Close and Noyce Court be approved as 
names for new streets on the former Moorgreen Hospital site, West 
End. 
 

13. FUNDING FOR LOCAL PROJECTS 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Area Co-ordinator in 
consultation with the Head of Culture, Clerk to West End Parish Council, 
and the Head of Trees and Countryside which requested funding to 
support projects that would meet identified local needs. 
 
There were two Developers’ Contributions from Linden Homes which were 
allocated to the playing fields at Cutbush Lane. The playing fields were 
leased to West End Parish Council by Southampton City Council. As a 
result they were not included in Eastleigh’s supply of pitches when the 
recent Playing Pitch Strategy was undertaken. Furthermore, West End 
Parish Council had agreed that the replacement of the play areas was a 
higher priority than any works at Cutbush Lane.  

Therefore it was recommended that the Council approached Linden 
Homes requesting that part of the Developer’s Contribution detailed in the 
report for £55,000 was reallocated to the two play area projects which 
would be packaged together in order to achieve economies of scale. 
 
RESOLVED -    
 
(1) That a contribution of £5,000 towards the TRAIN (arts) project 

be approved;  
 

(2) That £6,000 for tree works within the Grange Park ward be 
approved; 
 

(3) That £550 for tree works and a £400 contribution towards a new 
fence in Tamarisk Road/Jasmine Road, Hedge End be 
approved; 
 

(4) That expenditure of £3,713 for 9 plant towers in the Hedge End, 
West End and Botley (HEWEB) shopping centres be noted; and 
 

(5) That (a) the allocation of Developers’ Contributions for play 
areas at Townhill Farm and Carpathia Close, West End be 
approved; and (b) that it be noted that permission be sought 
from Linden Homes for the reallocation of contributions to two 
play area projects. 

 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

21/03/2016 
 
APPLICATIONS RECOMMENDED FOR DECISION 
 
HEDGE END, WEST END & BOTLEY Monday 21 March 2016 Case Officer Liz Harrison 

 
 
SITE: Land north and east of Boorley Green, Botley, 

Southampton, SO32 2BX 
 
Ref. R/15/77595 Received: 20/11/2015     (24/03/2016) 
 
 
APPLICANT: Bloor, Bovis and Linden Homes 

 
PROPOSAL: Reserved matters application (pursuant to outline 

planning permission O/12/71514 which was subject to an 
Environmental Impact Assessment) for the erection of 
441no. dwellings, car parking, road infrastructure, 
pedestrian/cycle links, foul and surface water drainage 
networks, landscaping and associated works (phase 1). 
This application includes the diversion of Footpath no.2. 

  
AMENDMENTS: 04/12/2015, 23/02/2016 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Subject to satisfactory receipt of amended or additional information, 
consideration of outstanding consultee responses and any necessary 
condition additions or amendments, including updating the list of approved 
plans, delegate to Head of Development Management, Chair & Vice-Chair of 
HEWEB Local Area Committee to 
 
APPROVE THE RESERVED MATTERS 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 
 
(1) The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with the 

following plans numbered: 10633cv-01, 10633cv-02, 10633cv-04, 10633cv-06 
REV A, 10633cv-07 REV A, 10633cv-08 REV A, 10633cv-08 REV A, 10633cv-
14, AHL.01_A, AHL.01_B, AHL.01_C, AHML01_MASTER, B641/07, B641/08, 
B641/09, B641/10, B641/11, B641/12, B641/13, B641/14, B641/15, B641/25, 
B641/26, B641/27, BML.01.A, BML.01_B, BML.01_C, BML01_MASTER, 
BSCA01.pe, DML.01_A Rev A, DML.01_B, DML.01_C, DML01_MASTER, 

11

Agenda Item 6



 

 

GARA01.pe, GARA02.pe, GARA03.pe, GARB04.pe, GARC01.pe, GARC02.pe, 
GARC03.pe, GARC04.pe, GARC05.pe, HP11068/1/FP, HT.2302.e, HT.2302.p, 
HT.2303-1.e, HT.2303-2.e, HT.2303-3.e, HT.2303.p, HT.2B4Pi.e, HT.2B4Pi.p, 
HT.301(2blk).e, HT.301(2blk).p, HT.303-i.pe, HT.303-iA.pe, HT.303-iA1.pe, 
HT.305i-1.pe, HT.306(2blk).e, HT.306(2blk).p, HT.306.pe, HT.306i.pe1, 
HT.306i.pe2, HT.307(2blk).e, HT.307(2blk).p, HT.307.pe, HT.308(2blk).e, 
HT.308(2blk).p, HT.308.e, HT.308.p, HT.309i-1.pe, HT.309i-2.pe, HT.309i-3.pe, 
HT.309i-4.pe, HT.310i-A-1.pe, HT.310i-A-2.pe, HT.310i.pe, HT.313.pe, 
HT.350.e, HT.350.p, HT.3B5Pi.e, HT.3B5Pi.p, HT.402-1.pe, HT.402-2.pe, 
HT.402.pe, HT.403.pe, HT.403CT.e1, HT.403CT.e2, HT.403CT.p, HT.404-1.e, 
HT.404-1.p, HT.404-2.e, HT.404-2.p, HT.404.pe, HT.404.pe1, HT.405-A.e, 
HT.405-A.p, HT.405.e, HT.405.p, HT.406-1.e, HT.406-1.p, HT.406-2.e, HT.406-
2.p, HT.409.pe, HT.411-A-1.e, HT.411-A-1.p, HT.411-A-2.e, HT.411-A-2.p, 
HT.411.e, HT.411.p, HT.412-1.e, HT.412-2.e, HT.412.p, HT.414.e, HT.414.p, 
HT.419-1.e, HT.419-2.e, HT.419-3.e, HT.419.p, HT.420-1.e, HT.420-1.p, 
HT.420-2.e, HT.420-2.p, HT.420-3.e, HT.420-3.p, HT.427.pe, HT.450-A.e, 
HT.450-A.p, HT.450.e, HT.450.p, HT.453.e, HT.453.p, HT.454-1.e, HT.454-1.p, 
HT.454-2.e, HT.454-2.p, HT.454-A.e, HT.454-A.p, HT.502.e, HT.502.p, 
HT.503.e, HT.503.p, HT.505.e, HT.505.p, HT.506.e, HT.506.p, HT.508.e, 
HT.508.p, HT.A23-1.e, HT.A23-2.e, HT.A23.p, HT.A31-1.e, HT.A31-2.e, 
HT.A31.p, HT.A41.pe, HT.PF01.e, HT.PF01.p, HT.SHL2.e, HT.SHL2.p, 
HT.SHL3.e, HT.SHL3.p, HT.SHL4.e, HT.SHL4.p, LP01-07(F) - LP01-LP06, 
MSS.01, MSS.02, MSS.07, MSS.08, MSS03, MSS04, MSS05, MSS06, P.A111-
A113.e, P.A111-A113.p, P.A114-A115.e, P.A114-A115.p, P.A116-A117.e, 
P.A116-A117.p, P.A125-A126.e, P.A125-A126.p, P.A127-A128.e, P.A127-
A128.p, P.A129-A132.e1, P.A129-A132.e2,  P.A129-A132.p1, P.A129-A132.p2, 
P.A13-A14.e, P.A13-A14.p, .A135-P.A136.e, P.A135-A136.p, P.A137-A141.e1, 
P.A137-A141.e2, P.A137-A141.p1, P.A137-A141.p2, P.A146-A147.e, P.A146-
A147.p, P.A148-A149_A150-A151.e, P.A148-A149_A150-A151.p, P.A152-
A153_A154-A155.p, P.A152-A153_A154-A55.e, P.A156-A157.e, P.A156-
A157.p, P.A158-A159.e, P.A158-A159.p, P.A160.pe, P.A163.pe, P.A2.p, 
P.A3.pe, P.A33_A37.e, P.A33_A37.p, P.A39.e, P.A39.p, P.A4-A5.e, P.A4-A5.p, 
P.A42-A44.e, P.A42-A44.p, P.A45.e, P.A48-A56.e2, P.A48-A56.p1, P.A48-
A56.p2, P.A48-A56.p3, P.A6-A7.e, P.A6-A7.p, P.A62-A65_A76-A79.e1, P.A62-
A65_A76-A79.e2, P.A62-A65_A76-A79.p, P.A66-A68.e, P.A66-A68.p, P.A69-
A71.e, P.A69-A71.p, P.A80-A81.e, P.A80-A81.p, P.A82-A83_A133-A134.e, 
P.A82-A83_A133-A134.p, P.A90.e, P.A90.p, P.A96-A97.e, P.A96-A97.p, P.B1-
B2.e, P.B1-B2.p1, P.B1-B2.p2, P.B104-B105.e1, P.B104-B105.e2, P.B104-
B105.p1, P.B104-B105.p2, P.B109-B110.e, P.B109-B110.p, P.B111-B113.e, 
P.B111-B113.p, P.B114-B116.e, P.B114-B116.p, P.B121-B123.e, P.B121-
B123.p, P.B130-B133.e1, P.B130-B133.e2, P.B130-B133.p, P.B138-B139.e, 
P.B138-B139.p, P.B146-B147.e, P.B146-B147.p, P.B149-B150.e, P.B149-
B150.p, P.B16-B17.e, P.B16-B17.p, P.B28.e, P.B28.p, P.B29-B30.e1, .B29-
B30.e2, P.B29-B30.p, P.B3-B4.e1, P.B3-B4.e2, P.B3-B4.p1, P.B3-B4.p2, P.B31-
B32.e, P.B31-B32.p, P.B36-B37.e, P.B36-B37.p1, P.B36-B37.p2, P.B43-B44.e, 
P.B43-B44.p, P.B47-B49.e1, P.B47-B49.e2, P.B47-B49.p, P.B59-B61.e, P.B59-
B61.p, P.B71-B72.e, P.B741-B72.p, P.B87-B88.e, P.B87-B88.p1, P.B87-B88.p2, 
P.B89-B90.e1, P.B89-B90.e2, P.B89-B90.p1, P.B89-B90.p2, P.B91-B101.e1, 
P.B91-B101.e2, P.B91-B101.p1, P.B91-B101.p2, P.B91-B101.p3, P.C108-
C109.e, P.C108-C109.p, P.C113-C115.e, P.C113-C115.p, P.C116-C120.e1, 

12



 

 

P.C116-C120.e2, P.C116-C120.p, P.C121-C122.e, P.C121-C122.p, P.C125-
C128.e1, P.C125-C128.e2, P.C125-C128.p, P.C14_C112.pe, P.C15-C18.e1, 
P.C15-C18.e2, P.C15-C18.p, P.C21-C24.e1, P.C21-C24.e2, P.C21-C24.p, 
P.C25-C26.e, P.C25-C26.p, P.C32.pe, P.C39.e, P.C39.p, P.C40.e, P.C40.p, 
P.C5.pe, P.C52.e, P.C52.p, P.C66-C68.e, P.C66-C68.p, P.C7.pe, P.C74-C75.e, 
P.C74-C75.p, P.C8.pe, P.C90-C91.e, P.C90-C91.p, G, SL01.A1_A2 Rev H, 
SL01_C Rev G, SL01_MASTER Rev D                  

 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

  
(2) Notwithstanding the details submitted to date, no development shall start until 

details and samples of the materials to be used in the construction of the external 
surfaces of the development hereby permitted have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interest of the 
amenities of the area. 

  
(3) The garages hereby approved shall only be used for the purpose of parking 

private motor vehicles in connection with the residential use of the property and 
shall not, at any time, be used for living accommodation, business, commercial 
or industrial purposes.   

 
Reason: To ensure the adequate provision of on site parking for the purpose of 
highway safety. 

  
(4) The development herby permitted shall not be brought into use until the area[s] 

shown on the approved plan for the parking vehicles [including those areas 
marked out on the plan as being unallocated] shall have been made available, 
surfaced and marked out.  The parking area[s] shall then be permanently 
retained and reserved for that purpose at all time.   

 
Reason: To make provide for off-street parkin for the purpose of highway safety. 

  
(5) No private parking management scheme shall be implemented on the site without 

the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

Reason: In the interests of proper planning. 
  
(6) No development above slab level shall take place until tree pit details have been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality. 

  
(7) No development above slab level shall take place until large-scale details [at a 

scale of 1:10] of all types of porches and bay windows shall be submitted to and 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  These details shall include 

13



 

 

details of materials, noting that the use of GRP will not be acceptable.  
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interests of the 
amenities of the area. 

  
(8) Notwithstanding the submitted landscaping plans, no development above slab 

level shall be take place until details of the proposed hard surfacing materials 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The submission shall include details of how the parking spaces are to be 
demarcated.  Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 

 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interests of the 
amenities of the area. 

  
Note to Applicant:  
 

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework, Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive approach to the handling 
of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever possible, a positive 
outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a timely manner. 

 
Under the Town and Country Planning England Regulations 2012, a fee is 
required for Discharge of Condition Applications. N.B. Conditions not fully 
discharged, invalidate the planning permission. 

 
The development hereby permitted shall comply with the conditions imposed on 
the grant of the outline planning permission reference O/12/71514 which was 
permitted on 28 November 2013. 

  

 
Report: 
 
This application has been referred to Committee because it is a major development 
which is contrary to the Development Plan and is controversial.         
 
 
The site and its surroundings 
 
1. The Boorley Green development site, within the parish of Botley lies to the 

east of the Borough and extends to approximately 81 hectares. It comprises a 
large, irregularly shaped plot of land bounded to the west by the B3354 
Winchester Road and to the south by Maddoxford Lane. The northern and 
eastern boundaries are demarcated by the meandering course of Ford Lake 
which is a tributary to the River Hamble and a Site of Importance for Nature 
Conservation (SINC) characterised by mature woodland. Beyond Ford Lake 
lies Chancellors Lane. To the south and west, the rear of a number of 
residential properties bound the site along Maddoxford Lane and Winchester 
Road.  

14



 

 

 
2. The majority of the site (59.9ha) is occupied by the former Botley Park golf 

course attached to the Botley Park Hotel and Country Club (4ha), which 
comprises a modern building complex with conference and leisure facilities, 
associated car parking and landscaping. The site also includes Braxells Farm 
(1.8ha) and associated buildings along the western boundary whilst the south-
eastern section of the site comprises a series of pasture fields associated with 
Maddoxford Farm (9.7ha). Near the centre of the site lies another SINC – 
Botley Park Wood which is a 1ha area of ancient woodland.  
 

3. This reserved matters application relates to the first phase of the Boorley 
Green residential development.  It is located at the northern end of the site, 
accessed off Winchester Road and extending down to the rear of the Botley 
Park Hotel and Country Club. 

 
 

Description of application 
 
4. The reserved matters application is for the first phase of the residential 

development, totalling 441 dwellings, together with car parking, road 
infrastructure, pedestrian/cycle links, foul and surface water drainage 
networks, landscaping and associated works, pursuant to outline planning 
permission O/12/71514.  The access from Winchester Road was approved as 
part of the outline application and this application seeks approval for the 
following reserved matters in relation to the first phase of the residential 
development only: 

 Appearance 

 Landscaping 

 Layout 

 Scale 
Future applications will be submitted in relation to the remaining residential 
development and other facilities on site. 
 

5. The application is for 441 dwelling units, to be provided by 3 separate 
developers as follows: 
Bloor Homes - Parcels A1 & A2 – 163 dwellings made up of 110 open market 
dwellings and 53 affordable dwellings, with the mix as follows: 

 4 x 1-bed flats (all affordable) 

 5 x 2-bed flats (all affordable) 

 46 x 2-bed houses (18 open market, 28 affordable) 

 57 x 3-bed houses (45 open market, 12 affordable) 

 49 x 4-bed houses (45 open market, 4 affordable) 

 2 x 5-bed houses (all open market) 
 

Linden Homes - Parcels B1, B2 & B3 – 150 dwellings made up of 102 open 
market dwellings and 48 affordable dwellings, with the mix as follows: 

 4 x 1-bed flats (all affordable) 

 7 x 2-bed flats (all affordable) 

 26 x 2-bed houses (9 open market, 17 affordable) 

15



 

 

 80 x 3-bed houses (62 open market, 18 affordable) 

 33 x 4-bed houses (31 open market, 2 affordable) 
 

Bovis Homes - Parcels C1 & C2 – 128 dwellings made up of 89 open market 
dwellings and 39 affordable dwellings, with the mix as follows: 

 2 x 2-bed flat above a garage (all affordable) 

 39 x 2-bed houses (10 open market, 29 affordable) 

 41 x 3-bed houses (33 open market, 8 affordable) 

 39 x 4-bed houses (all open market) 

 7 x 5-bed houses (all open market) 
 
6. The proposed houses are 2 or 2 ½ storey, terraced, semi-detached or 

detached properties, with the two blocks of flats being 3 storey in height.  The 
style of architecture of the dwellings is generally traditional, with properties 
largely fronting the road or facing into a parking court.  The block of flats facing 
the open space to the south-west will also be traditional in style.  However, a 
more contemporary approach has been taken with the block of flats facing the 
open space to the north-east as this is the start of a more contemporary part 
of the site surrounding the open space that will be brought forward as part of a 
later phase of development. 

 
7. Car parking is provided in a mix of garages, private driveways and parking 

courts.  Secure cycle parking will be provided within garages, sheds in rear 
gardens and in dedicated cycle stores for the flats. 
 

8. This application includes the area of open space to the south west of this first 
phase, to the rear of Braxells Farms, smaller areas of open space providing 
green links through the development and the woodland edge along the 
northern boundary.  

 
9. This application is accompanied by the following reports and technical 

assessments which have been updated as necessary throughout the course 
of the application:-  

 Design & Access Statement 

 Planning Statement 

 Statement of Community Involvement 

 Drainage Report 

 Sustainability Statement 

 Roadway Lighting Report and Lighting Specification 

 Overarching Written Scheme of Archaeological Investigation 

 Habitat Protection, Management & Monitoring Plan 

 Arboricultural Assessment of Impact and Method Statement 

 Desk Study & Ground Investigation Report 

 Space Standards 
 

 
10. The outline application was supported by an Environmental Statement.  It is 

not considered that there has been a significant change in circumstances that 

16



 

 

requires this reserved matters application to be supported by a further 
Environmental Statement. 

 
11. Similarly at outline stage screening was also undertaken to establish whether 

a Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) was required.  It was concluded 
that, with the mitigation proposed and conditions to control impacts, no 
significant likely impacts on any European Designated sites would occur as a 
result of the development and a full HRA was not required. There has not 
been a significant change in circumstances since then that warrants a different 
conclusion being reached now. 

 
Relevant planning history 

 
12. The relevant planning history in relation to this site is as follows: 
  

 O/12/71514 - Outline application with all matters reserved (except for 
access) for the demolition of golf driving range shelter and 
groundsman's equipment store and the development of 1400 homes 
with access from Winchester Road and Maddoxford Lane (with 
upgrades to the Winchester Road/Woodhouse Lane Junction and 
approaches and Maypole Roundabout), construction of Sunday's Hill 
Bypass and approaches, extension to existing hotel (including new 
conference and leisure facilities, 44 no. new bedrooms and car 
parking), creation of new local centre (incorporating energy centre, pub, 
assisted living accommodation, retail and employment floorspace, 
including change of use of Braxells Farm House to employment), 
primary school, multi purpose community building, sports and open 
space facilities including play areas, allotments and Multi-Use Games 
Area, and changing facilities, together with construction of roads, 
footpaths (including diversion of Footpath No. 2) and cycle ways, and 
pumping stations – granted 28.11.13  

 

 R/14/74872 - Reserved matters pursuant to outline permission 
O/12/71514 for erection of sports pavilion play area and laying out of 
playing pitches together with access, landscaping, car parking, cycle 
parking and bin storage, diversion of public footpath no. 2 and 
sustainable urban drainage – approved 31.10.14 

 

 R/15/77552 - Reserved Matters Application (Pursuant to outline 
planning permission O/12/71514 which was subject to an 
Environmental Impact Assessment) for the spine road infrastructure 
together with foul and surface water drainage networks, landscaping 
and associated works. This application includes the diversion of 
Footpath No. 2 – approved 19.2.16  

 
13. The s106 legal agreement associated with the outline planning permission 

secured the following in relation to this site: 

 30% affordable housing 

 Employment & Skills Plan 

 Travel Plan 

17



 

 

 Ecological Monitoring and Management Plan 

 Ecological Protection and Mitigation Plan 

 Construction Management Plan 

 Lorry Routing Agreement 

 Accesses off Winchester Road and Maddoxford Lane 

 Highway works at Maddoxford Lane, Maypole Roundabout, Winchester 
Road, Woodhouse Lane, Sundays Hill Bypass and Botley Footpath 

 Provision of bus service 

 Provision of primary school site 

 Provision of open space, play areas, playing fields and Multi Use 
Games Area then transfer to Council 

 Provision of Community Building and Changing Facility or a financial 
penalty 

 Use of a sustainable drainage system 

 Prevention of disposing of unallocated parking spaces to any owner 

 Community use agreements for Botley Park Hotel & Country Club 

 Transfer of SINC, Semi-Natural Area and Pylands Lane Woodland to 
Council 

 Financial contributions towards air quality monitoring, Botley footpath 
works, community development worker, Education and Children’s 
Services, highways/sustainable transport improvements, Junction 8 
improvements, street tree maintenance, economic development, health 
facilities, open space maintenance, play equipment provision and 
maintenance, public art, SINC maintenance, SPA Disturbance 
Mitigation Project, Pylands Lane woodland maintenance, Manor Farm 
Bat enhancement, post-occupancy evaluation of sustainability study 
and household waste recycling facility. 

 
 

Representations received 
 
14. 1 letter of objection were received from adjoining residents and those living 

locally with concerns relating to: 

 Impact on wildlife and ecology, this area may be a Site of Special 
Scientific Interest. 

 There was an outbreak of foot and mouth in the area in the 1960s and 
an entire herd was slaughtered at Braxells Farm and buried in the fields 
that form this site and remains would still exist. 

 Overdevelopment of the village causing parking problems and merging 
of settlements. 

 Impact on water and water pressure. 
 

Consultation responses 
 
15. Head of Regeneration & Planning Policy – Design & Sustainability 

Comments on original plans – amendments required to house types and flats 
to improve design and appearance in streetscene; increased provision of 
street trees and trees in parking areas; improvements to boundary treatments; 

18



 

 

inclusion of balconies on blocks of flats; and details of hard surfacing.  
Additional work required to ensure character areas are more distinct. 
 
Comments on amended plans – Members will be updated at committee 
 

16. Head of Regeneration & Planning Policy – Biodiversity 
Comments on original plans – amendments required in relation to permeability 
for protected species present on site; improvements to dormice and badger 
mitigation and green infrastructure; additional bat and bird boxes; additional 
hedgerow planting and use of indigenous planting; and improvements to 
SuDS network for biodiversity and water quality.  In addition details of lighting 
levels along woodland edges are required to ensure dark corridors are 
provided for bats; and areal/terrestrial crossings of roads for wildlife are 
required. 

 
 Comments on amended plans – Members will be updated at committee. 

 
17. Tree Services Manager   

Comments on original plans – Clarification required as to which trees are to be 
removed and why; therefore arboricultural assessment and tree protection 
plan should be amended.   
 
Comments on amended plans – Members will be updated at committee. 
 

18. Head of Transportation & Engineering 
Comments on original plans – amendments required in relation to additional, 
repositioned or re-sized parking required for some plots and additional visitor 
parking; provision of cycle stores and bin collection points; provision of rear 
accesses; alignment/width of some footpath/cycleways; highway design; 
drainage details and hard surfacing.  Additional information also required in 
relation to vehicle tracking. 

 
 Comments on amended plans – Members will be updated at committee. 

 
19. Head of Housing – S106 requires 30% affordable housing for the site and 

Phase 1 proposes 32% affordable (140 units) which is acceptable.  The 
proposed mix and location of the affordable homes meets with our 
requirements, but it is noted that the amended plans reduced the number of 
affordable units by 1 and changed the mix with the loss of 2 x 4-bed dwellings 
and the provision of an extra 3-bed dwelling.  The required mix of units is set 
out in the S106 and will need to be provided across the site as a whole.  Note 
that information on tenure has not been provided at this stage.  65% of the 
affordable units are to be affordable rent and it should be noted that we 
require all 1-bed units to be provided as rent.  All affordable dwellings should 
be built to Lifetime Homes Standards.  The overall development is to deliver 
13 wheelchair accessible units and note that 3 are being provided in this 
phase.  All affordable homes should meet HCA Design & Quality Standards.  
Recommend developer has dialogue with RP regarding these standards and 
those of the RP. 

 

19



 

 

20. Head of Environmental Health – There is potential for the site to be impacted 
by noise from B3354, Winchester Road and Botley Park Hotel and proposed 
community uses, but conditions to mitigate this are attached to the outline 
permission.  These need to be discharged prior to works commencing on each 
phase of development.  On this basis no objection to site layout. 

 
21. Head of Direct Services – No objections. 

 

22. HCC Highways – This application should be dealt with by EBC Highway 
Engineers. 
 

23. HCC Flood & Water Management Team 
Comments on original plans – unable to comment on application as 
information provided is in unsuitable form and too detailed.   
 
Comments on amended plans – Members will be updated at committee. 
 

24. HCC Archaeology – There are some archaeological concerns at this site that 
were addressed by conditions on the outline permission.  The submitted 
Written Scheme of Investigation is acceptable and its implementation should 
be secured. 

 
25. HCC Rights of Way – No response at time of writing 
 
26. Environment Agency – No comments to make on this application.  No 

additional information has been submitted in terms of foul drainage and 
therefore have no comments to make on this.   
 

With regards to surface water, following changes to the Development 
Management Procedure Order (DMPO) that came into effect on 15.4.15, the 
EA are no longer a statutory consultee on surface water matters for planning 
applications.  This issue is now the responsibility of the Lead Local Flood 
Authority (LLFA) – Hampshire County Council - who are now the responsible 
body for reviewing and assessing the risk of flooding from surface water 
sources for major development.  The transitional period of 6 months has now 
expired.  We would recommend that our previous comments be taken into 
consideration and that you consult with LLFA.   
 

27. Southern Water – no comment to make in respect of reserved matters 
application.  Proposed sewer improvement works as suggested in our 
previous correspondence remains valid unless an application under s98 of the 
Water Industry Act 1991 has been submitted by the applicant.  An application 
under S185 (Water trunk main diversion) of Water Industry Act 1991 needs to 
be submitted by applicant.  Also note private water communication pipe and 
sludge pipe (treated effluent pipe) within the site.  An approval for the 
connection should be submitted under S106 connection application before 
implementing on site. 

 
28. Natural England – Site is in close proximity to Solent & Southampton Water 

Special Protection Area (SPA) and Solent Maritime Special Area of 

20



 

 

Conservation (SAC) which are European Sites.  The sites are also listed as a 
Solent and Southampton Water Ramsar site and as Upper Hamble Estuary 
and Woods Site of Special Scientific Interest.  As a competent authority under 
provisions of Habitats Regulations, Council should have regard for any 
potential impacts that a plan or project may have.  Site is within 5.6km of 
Solent & Southampton Water SPA and will lead to net increase in residential 
accommodation.  Provided applicant is complying with SPD or policy to 
mitigate against adverse effects from recreational disturbance on the Solent 
SPA then we are satisfied the applicant has mitigated against the potential 
adverse effects of the development on the integrity of the European site and 
have no objection to this aspect of the application.  We have not assessed this 
application for impact on protected species. 
 

29. Historic England – the application should be determined in accordance with 
national and local policy guidance, and on the basis of your specialist 
conservation advice. 
 

30. Esso Petroleum – No response at time of writing. 
 

31. Southern Gas Networks – No response at time of writing. 
 

32. Health & Safety Executive – No response at time of writing. 
 

33. British Horse Society – No response at time of writing. 
 

34. Ramblers – Objection on the following grounds: 

 Local planning authority should not approve any application unless it is 
satisfied that the application will not prejudice the creation of a suitable 
future environment for the right of way in accordance with DEFRA 
Circular 1/09 Second Edition and government policy.  

 The need for a diversion order may arise when the second phase is 
applied for on a reserved matters application and we will object to any 
application and any Order that does not meet the industry agreed 
government guidance. 

 We would welcome the opportunity to be involved at an earlier stage 
when consideration is being given to the preparation of the reserved 
matters application that will affect the setting of Footpath No. 2 Botley. 

 

35. Southampton Airport Airside Operations Policy & Planning Officer – No 
response at time of writing. 
 

36. Hampshire Gardens Trust – No response at time of writing. 
 

37. Botley Parish Council – Objection on the following grounds: 
 Strongly object to inclusion of modern style, three storey buildings as 

there are no three storey apartment blocks in Botley and it will set an 
undesirable precedent within a rural community.  Concern that 
occupiers of such buildings would be stigmatised by other residents of 
Boorley Green. 

21



 

 

 Request confirmation that all public transport will use a circular route 
within the development, entering and leaving via Winchester Road.  
Buses should not be allowed to use Maddoxford Lane. 

 S106 contains no financial provision for long-term maintenance of 
SuDS infrastructure. 

 Request condition to restrict use of Maddoxford Lane by construction 
traffic to bare minimum with requirement that road surface should be 
cleaned wherever HGVs or heavy plant use Maddoxford Lane to exit 
the site. 
 

 
38. Botley Parish Action Group  

 Majority of buildings are appropriate to vernacular of surrounding area, 
but not happy about pressure being put on developers to include 
contemporary buildings in certain areas, e.g. around central green 
spaces.  Such layouts must be more representative of a village green, 
rather than a town square. 

 Three-storey apartment blocks with full height roof, approximately 12m 
in height, will have noticeable visual impact on surrounding countryside 
and existing built-up areas, wherever they are sited.  Is one of the 
highest land areas in Eastleigh Borough and highest in Botley parish, 
and is visible in panoramic views over a wide area. 

 2 ½ storey housing (9-10m) will also need careful siting.  Not able to tell 
the typography from online documents therefore cannot be assured that 
all such buildings will be below the skyline. 

 Concerned there are no arrangement for SuDS management.  
Essential it is expertly managed and fully funded.  This should be 
agreed prior to commencement. 

 
 

Policy context:  designation applicable to site 

 Countryside  

 SINC 
 
 

Development plan saved policies, emerging local plan policies and 
SPD’s 

 
National Planning Policy Framework 

 
39. The NPPF states that applications for planning permission must be 

determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. Paragraph 14 sets out a general 
presumption in favour of sustainable development and states that 
development proposals which accord with the development plan should be 
approved without delay. Where the development plan is absent, silent, or 
relevant policies are out-of-date, planning permission should be granted 
unless the adverse impacts of the development would outweigh the benefits; 
or specific policies in the Framework indicate development should be 
restricted. Local plan policies that do not accord with the NPPF are now 

22



 

 

deemed to be “out-of-date”. The NPPF requires that due weight should be 
given to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree of 
consistency with the NPPF. In other words the closer the policies in the plan 
accord to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may be 
given. 

 
40. Three dimensions of sustainability given in paragraph 7 are to be sought 

jointly: economic (supporting economy and ensuring land availability); social 
(providing housing, creating high quality environment with accessible local 
services); and environmental (contributing to, protecting and enhancing 
natural, built and historic environment) whilst paragraph 10 advises that plans 
and decisions need to take local circumstances into account, so they respond 
to the different opportunities for achieving sustainable development in different 
areas. 

 
41. Para 17 sets out 12 core planning principles that include; 
 

 always seeking to secure high quality design and a good standard of 
amenity for all existing occupiers of land 

 
42. Para. 56 – Requirement for good design. 
 
43. Para. 58 – Policies and decisions should aim to ensure developments 

establish a strong sense of place; optimise the potential of the site; respond to 
local character and history; create safe and accessible environments; are 
visually attractive as result of good architecture and appropriate landscaping 

 
44. Para. 60 – Policies and decisions should not attempt to impose architectural 

styles or particular tastes. It is proper to seek to promote or reinforce local 
distinctiveness 

 
45. Para. 61 – Securing high quality and inclusive design goes beyond aesthetic 

considerations. Planning decisions should address the connections between 
people and places and the integration of new development into the natural 
built and historic environment 

 
46. Para 69 – Decisions should aim to achieve places which promote meetings 

between members of the community, safe and accessible environments and 
developments containing clear and legible pedestrian routes, high quality 
public space which encourages the active and continual use of public areas. 

 
47. Para.73 – Access to high quality open spaces and opportunities for sport and 

recreation can make an important contribution to the health and well-being of 
communities. Information gained from assessments should determine what 
open space, sports and recreational provision are needed. 

 
48. Para. 103 – Ensure flood risk is not increased elsewhere. 
 

23



 

 

49. Para. 109 – Seeks to minimise impacts on biodiversity and protect 
unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise pollution and remediating 
contaminated land where appropriate.  

 
50. Para. 118 – Decisions should aim to conserve and enhance biodiversity. If 

significant harm cannot be avoided, mitigated or compensated for, then 
planning permission should be refused.  Opportunities to incorporate 
biodiversity in and around development should be encouraged.  

 
51. Para 123 – Avoid, mitigate and reduce noise which gives rise to significant 

adverse impacts on health and quality of life. 
 
52. Para. 192 – The right information is crucial to good decision-taking, particularly 

where formal assessments are required (such as EIA/HRA/FRA). 
 
53. Para 196 indicates that planning law requires that planning applications are 

dealt with in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF is such a material consideration. 

 
54. Para 203 - LPAs should consider whether otherwise unacceptable 

development could be made acceptable through the use of conditions or 
planning obligations. 

 
55. Para 216 - Decision-takers can give weight to relevant policies in emerging 

plans according to the stage of preparation, the extent to which there are 
unresolved objections to relevant policies and the degree of consistency to the 
relevant policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF.  

 
National Planning Practice Guidance  

 
56. Where material, this guidance should be afforded weight in the consideration 

of planning applications.  
 
57. Determining a planning application – To the extent that development plan 

policies are material, a decision must be taken in accordance with the 
development plan unless there are material considerations that indicate 
otherwise. Where the plan is absent, silent or out of date, an application must 
be determined in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. 

 
58. Design – Good quality design is an integral part of sustainable development. 

Achieving good design is about creating places, buildings or spaces that work 
well for everyone, look good, will last well and adapt for the needs of future 
generations. Good design responds in a practical and creative way to both the 
function and identity of a place. It puts land, water, drainage, energy, 
community, economic, infrastructure and other such resources to the best 
possible use over the long as well as the short term. 

 

24



 

 

59. Natural Environment – LPAs should take into consideration various 
publications when taking biodiversity into account and should look for net 
gains. Sufficient information should be sought through ecological surveys etc. 

 
60. Water Supply, wastewater and water quality – adequate water and wastewater 

infrastructure is needed to support sustainable development. Conditions can 
be used to ensure adequate infrastructure. 

 
Saved Policies of the Adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 
(EBLP 2001-2011)  

 
61. The key policies of the adopted local plan are: 
 

 1.CO – Development in the countryside 

 18.CO – Impact on landscape character 

 23NC – Protection of SINCs. 

 25.NC – Promotion of biodiversity 

 28.ES – Waste collection and storage 

 30.ES – Noise-sensitive development 

 34.ES – Requirement to reduce greenhouse gases 

 36.ES - Lighting 

 45.ES – Sustainable  Drainage requirements 

 59BE - seeks to ensure the high quality design of new development, taking 
full and proper account of the context of the site including the character and 
appearance of the locality  

 72.H – Density – minimum 35 dwellings per hectare unless local 
circumstances and context indicate otherwise. 

 74.H – Affordable housing - on site requirement 

 100.T – Requires development to be well served by sustainable forms of 
transport, to provide measures to minimise impact on the network, minimise 
travel demand, and provide a choice of transport modes. 

 102.T – Requires new development to provide safe accesses that do not 
have adverse environmental implications and are to adoptable standard. 

 104.T – Requires proposals to provide adequate off-highway parking 

 147.OS – Provision of public open space 
 

Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013  
 
62. The application site lies outside a Minerals Safeguarding Area. 
 

Submission Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2019 
 
63. Government planning guidance indicates that emerging development plans 

can be accorded increased weight as they progress towards adoption. The 
most relevant policies are: 

 S1 – Sustainable development 

 S3 – Location of new housing 

 S5 – Green infrastructure  

 S8 – Strategic footpath, cycleway, bridleway links    

25



 

 

 S11 - Nature conservation  

 S12 – Heritage assets  

 DM1 – General criteria for new development  

 DM2 – Environmentally sustainable development  

 DM5 – Sustainable surface water management and watercourse 
management 

 DM9 –Nature Conservation  

 DM10 – Heritage Assets 

 DM23 – General development criteria – transport 

 DM24 – Parking 

 DM29 – Internal space standards for residential development 

 BO1 – Land north and east of Boorley Green allocation 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance 
64. Relevant documents are: 
 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places (November 2011) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Environmentally Sustainable 
Development (March 2009) 

 Supplementary Planning document : Biodiversity (December 2009) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Parking Standards (January 
2009) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Affordable Housing (July 2009) 

 Supplementary Planning Document : Internal Space Standards (January 
2012) 

 
Policy commentary 
 
65. The above policies and guidance combine to form the criteria on which this 

application will be assessed. 
 

Assessment of proposal: Development plan and / or legislative 
background 

 
66. Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states:  “If 

regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the Planning Acts the determination must be 
made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise”. 

 
The Principle of Development 

 
67. The site is located within the countryside in the adopted local plan but is 

allocated for residential development under draft policy BO1 of the submitted 
local plan. Outline planning permission for up to 1400 dwellings, an extension 
to the existing hotel, the creation of a new local centre, primary school, multi-
purpose community building, sports and open space facilities and associated 
infrastructure, together with new vehicular accesses off Winchester Road and 
Maddoxford Lane was granted in November 2013. The principle of residential 

26



 

 

development on this site, accessed off Winchester Road and Maddoxford 
Lane, has therefore been established and cannot be reconsidered as part of 
this application. As such the proposed development is acceptable in principle. 
Issues of highways impact, ecology, archaeology, drainage, contaminated 
land, noise and vibration, dust, protection of trees, and the level of affordable 
housing and public open space were considered at the outline stage and 
covered by submission of documents as part of the outline application, 
conditions attached to the outline permission, or obligations contained within 
the associated S106 legal agreement. 

 
 Sustainable Development 

 
68. The outline application considered matters of sustainability and concluded that 

the development would fulfill an economic role by expanding the quality and 
choice of housing, a social role by providing for clearly needed market and 
affordable housing together with social and community facilities not presently 
available within Boorley Green, and, with mitigation, a satisfactory 
environmental role. As such the proposed development is considered to be 
sustainable in principle.  The detailed matters arising from the 1st phase of the 
residential development and associated infrastructure are covered below in 
the sections relating to the reserved matters that are now to be considered – 
appearance, layout, scale and landscaping. 

 
 Appearance 

 
69. All the houses are 2 or 2 ½ -storey in height, terraced, semi-detached or 

detached, with the two blocks of flats being 3 storey in height.  The 
architectural style is generally traditional in appearance, with properties largely 
fronting the road or facing into a parking court.  Mainly brick elevations are 
proposed with some render, cladding, tile hanging or painted brick used to add 
interest to the elevations.  It will be important that good quality materials are 
used and while the application includes some suggested materials, not all of 
these are considered to be appropriate.  However this can be covered by 
condition. 

 
70. In general the design of the buildings is considered to be acceptable, but 

there are a number of instances where further amendments are required to 
improve the external appearance of the dwellings and add interest to the 
roof scape, particularly in relation to window design, corner plots (to ensure 
they provide an attractive front to both roads), the need for the use of 
chimneys on more plots and the creation of coherent streetscenes and 
character areas.  Amended plans have been submitted and are out for 
consultation.  Members will be updated at committee. 
 

71. It is noted that the Parish Council have raised concerns about the use of a 
more contemporary design approach within the development. This 
application for the 1st phase includes one block of flats facing the open 
space to the north-east which is the start of a more contemporary part of 
the site surrounding the open space that will be brought forward as part of a 
later phase of development. With a site of 1400 dwellings it is considered 

27



 

 

that some different character areas are required to add interest to the 
development and prevent it being too monotonous in appearance. This area 
surrounding the open space is one such location within the more central 
section of the site where a more contemporary design approach could be 
successfully integrated with the rest of the development. It is not located on 
the edges of the site or adjoining any existing parts of Boorley Green and 
as such it is considered that it could be form part of the new development 
without having an adverse impact on the character and appearance of the 
neighbouring properties and village of Boorley Green as a whole. 
 

72. It is considered therefore that subject to the amended plans satisfactorily 
addressing these points it should be possible to ensure that both the 
individual dwellings and the block of flats, and their relative siting would give 
rise to an acceptable form of development with respect to appearance. 

 
 Layout 
 
73. The proposed layout shows the main spine road (which already has reserved 

matters approval) leading off Winchester Road. Secondary roads then lead off 
the spine road on both sides of the road, creating smaller areas of either 
perimeter block development, short private drives or buildings clustered 
around parking courts. The street pattern, together with the proposed small 
green links, provides routes through the development from the perimeter path 
on the northern boundary through to the open space on the south western 
boundary. Generally the dwellings face onto a road, private drive or courtyard.  
The majority of dwellings have on-plot parking, for those that do not have 
garages or drives, parking is provided in a parking court. 

 
74. The perimeter path runs from the access on Winchester Road round the 

northern boundary, providing an off-road pedestrian and cycle route for 
residents. The woodland edge to the development sits the other side of the 
perimeter path. An area of public open space is located in the south-west 
corner of the site. Some of the green links and areas of open space near the 
entrance and on the northern boundary of the site will also form part of the 
sustainable drainage system proposed for the site. 
 

75. The levels across the site vary significantly in places and it will be necessary 
to re-profile the levels of this part of the site to ensure that the development 
can be satisfactorily accommodated. Given the change in levels across the 
site careful thought needs to be given to the proposed layout to ensure that 
the separation distances between dwellings are increased where there is a 
noticeable change in levels. Some amendments were required to the original 
layout to improve the relationship between properties. While the applicants 
have confirmed that all properties meet the internal space standards of draft 
policy DM29, there was a need to increase the size of some of the gardens to 
meet the requirements of the Quality Places Supplementary Planning 
Guidelines. Amended plans have been submitted and are being consulted on.  
Members will be updated at committee. 
 

28



 

 

76. Some amendments are also required to the plans originally submitted to 
address the concerns from Transportation & Engineering. Members will be 
updated at committee on the outcome of the consultation on the amended 
plans. 

 
 Scale 
 
77. The proposal consists of a mix of detached, semi-detached and terraced 

properties, together with 2 flats above garages and 2 blocks of flats. The 
dwellings are 2 or 2 ½ storeys in height, the flats above garages are 2 storey 
in height and the blocks of flats are both 3 storey in height. Comments have 
been made that the 3 storey blocks of flats are inappropriate as they are not 
typical of the area. It is accepted that they are not typical of the area, but the 
Boorley Green development is for 1400 dwellings and will therefore have to 
include a wide variety of forms of buildings and it is not unreasonable that this 
would include some 3 storey buildings. The 3 storey blocks of flats are 
relatively small, accommodating only 9 and 11 flats respectively. As such the 
scale of these 3 storey buildings is kept to a minimum and their location 
adjacent to areas of open space ensures that there would be space around 
them so that they do not appear cramped. In addition they are located within 
the development and not in close proximity to the existing dwellings of Boorley 
Green. As such it is considered that the 3 storey blocks of flats could be 
satisfactorily accommodated within the proposed development and would not 
be significantly detrimental to its character or appearance. 

 
78. It is noted that there is also some concern about the location of the 2 ½ storey 

properties. Generally these are located along the spine road or at the entrance 
to the site, but there are some instances where they are also used elsewhere 
on the development. Amendments were required to the original submission to 
ensure that the use of 2 ½ storey properties works within the proposed 
streetcene. Some variety in ridge heights is to be expected in a development 
of this size and on a site with the various level changes. However provided the 
resultant streetscenes are coherent then 2 ½ storey properties should be able 
to be satisfactorily accommodated within the development. While they, and the 
3 storey flats, may be visible in views of the development from the surrounding 
area, this in itself is not a reasonable reason for refusal.  Amended plans have 
been submitted and are out to consultation. Members will be updated at 
committee.   

 

Landscaping 
 
79. Due to the nature of the landscaping of the former golf course a number of 

trees would need to be removed in order to facilitate the development. The 
original arboricultural report submitted with the application indicated that 2 
individual trees, together with part of 14 groups of trees and part of the 
woodland edge would need to be removed. The Tree Officer sought 
clarification as to why 2 of the individual trees were proposed to be removed 
and further amendments to the arboricultural report were requested.  A 
revised report has been submitted, which appears to show 1 of the trees now 
being retained within the development. It is understood that it would not be 

29



 

 

safe to retain the other tree due to the change in levels around it, but that a 
suitable replacement would be provided. The Tree Officer has been asked to 
consider the revised arboricultural report and Members will be updated at 
committee. 

 
80. The tree lined avenue approach, approved as part of the infrastructure 

reserved matters approval, is shown on the submitted plans.  Some additional 
street trees within the remainder of the development parcel have been 
requested, together with some amendments to the other landscaped areas 
and proposed boundary treatments. Amended plans have been submitted and 
Members will be updated at committee. 
 

81. This development parcel includes some of the attenuation features for the 
sustainable drainage system and the Council’s Biodiversity officer has 
requested some amendments to the landscaping of these areas and the green 
links to improve water quality and biodiversity. Members will be updated. 

 
 Affordable Housing 

 

82. The S106 associated with the outline planning permission requires 30% of the 
dwellings to be affordable. This application seeks reserved matters approval 
for 441 dwellings, of which, on the amended plans, 140 are to be affordable 
dwellings (32%), made up as follows: 

 8 x 1-bed flats (3 of which are wheelchair accessible units) 

 12 x 2-bed flats  

 2 x 2-bed flat above a garage 

 74 x 2-bed houses  

 38 x 3-bed houses  

 6 x 4-bed houses  
 
83. Housing has been consulted on the application. They were satisfied with the 

original submission, the level of affordable housing proposed, the mix and the 
location of the units. Information on the tenure of the units has not been 
included with this application, but the S106 requires 65% of the affordable 
units to be affordable rent and 35% to be intermediate dwellings, or another 
mix as agreed in writing. All the affordable housing is to be built to Lifetime 
Homes Standards.  It is noted that the amended plans reduce the number of 
affordable units from 141 to 140, but that still equates to 32%. Members will be 
updated at committee with Housing’s comments on the amended plans. 

 
 Residential Amenity 

 

84. As indicated above there were some instances on the original layout where 
insufficient separation distance was being provided between dwellings, 
particularly where there was a noticeable change in dwellings.  In addition 
some improvements were required to the proposed garden sizes for the 
dwellings. Amended plans have been submitted and are currently being 
considered, but due to discussions held before the submission of these plans 
it is anticipated that the majority of these issues will have been resolved 

30



 

 

satisfactorily. In addition some improvements were required to the proposed 
garden sizes for the dwellings. Members will be updated at committee. 

 
85. This phase of the development is sited at the northern end of the wider 

development area, furthest away from the existing settlement of Boorley 
Green. The nearest buildings are those on Braxells Farm and the Botley Park 
Hotel & Country Club and they are at least 50m from the nearest proposed 
dwellings. 
 

86. Subject to the amended plans satisfactorily resolving the previous concerns 
about some separation distances between dwellings and the garden sizes 
then the proposed development would not have a significantly detrimental 
impact on residential amenities. 

 
 Drainage and Flood Risk 

 

87. Drainage conditions were attached to the outline planning permission and a 
strategic drainage framework has already been submitted and approved. The 
drainage scheme proposed for this first phase follows the previously agreed 
strategic drainage framework, including the use of a temporary foul drainage 
system involving regular tankering off-site, until the Southern Water’s new 
trunk sewer is operational. Comments are awaited from HCC Flood and Water 
Management and Transportation & Engineering on the revised drainage 
details and Members will be updated at committee. Environment Agency and 
Southern Water have no further comments to make on the proposal, but would 
be consulted on any information submitted to discharge the drainage 
conditions on the outline planning permission. 

 
88. Concerns have been raised about the future management of the SuDS 

system.  While the details of who will manage the system are not yet known, 
these details will need to be submitted under condition 18 of the outline 
planning permission. 

 
 Ecology 

 

89. The Council’s Biodiversity Officer has requested some further amendments to 
the proposed landscaping scheme and ecological mitigation measures to 
ensure that the species found on site are appropriately provided for. It is 
anticipated that a revised landscaping scheme will be submitted shortly, and 
Members will be updated shortly. 

 
Other matters raised by third parties and consultees 

 
90. As stated above reserved matters approval has already been issued for the 

spine road running through the site and this application includes these details.  
The spine road has been designed to enable a bus to travel along the road 
and is wide enough to allow two buses to pass each other should this be 
required. At this stage it is too early to conclude on the exact route any future 
buses serving the site would take, but the proposed layout allows for all 

31



 

 

options, thus ensuring that a public transport route can be provided and that 
the Maddoxford Lane access does not have to be used. 

 
91. It is recognised that concerns have been raised about the general principle of 

construction traffic using Maddoxford Lane. This phase of the development is 
located at the northern end of the site, immediately adjacent to the Winchester 
Road access. As such it is anticipated that construction traffic associated with 
this phase of the development would access the site via Winchester Road and 
not Maddoxford Lane. In any event it would not be reasonable to refuse this 
reserved matters application for reasons related to the impact of construction 
traffic as this would have been anticipated when considering the outline 
planning application and the S106 legal agreement associated with the outline 
planning permission requires the submission of a lorry routing details to be 
agreed by both the Council and Hampshire County Council. 
 

92. The comments about the Braxells Farm slaughtered herd being buried on site 
are noted, however, conditions are attached to the outline planning permission 
dealing with contaminated land. 

 
Other material considerations 

 
93. Also of relevance is the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, 

July 2014. While the Inspector concluded that the five year housing land 
supply was inadequate and that the plan was unsound it technically remains a 
material planning consideration and a submitted plan for the purposes of the 
NPPF. Whilst the weight that can be attributed to the policies in it is very 
limited, it nevertheless represents the most recent statement of the Council’s 
development strategy for the borough. As mentioned above this plan includes 
the site as a draft allocation for housing; however as outline planning 
permission is already granted the only issues to be considered with this 
application are matters of appearance, layout, scale and landscaping. With 
regards to these matters, the new policies essentially echo those of the 
current plan and are not considered to affect the recommendation put forward. 

 
Conclusion 
 

94. Subject to some amendments to the proposed scheme, as outlined above and 
the satisfactory completion of consultations, this reserved matters scheme is 
considered to conform to the parameters identified at the outline permission 
stage and would be an acceptable form of development meeting the 
necessary standards. Reserved matters approval is therefore recommended. 

 
 
 
 
 

32



 

 

 

© Crown copyright and database rights (2016) Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)

Scale:

Map Ref:

Date:

1:10000

10/03/2016

SU5014

Title:

 

33



This page is intentionally left blank



 

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Monday 21 March 2016 

FUNDING FOR LOCAL PROJECTS  

   Report of the Area Co-ordinator  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that this Committee:  

(1) Approves £3,800 for the purchase and installation of two defibrillators in the 
Grange Park ward; 

(2) Approves £250 as a grant towards the set up costs of Hedge End United 
Under 9s Football Club; 

(3) Approves expenditure below and accrued interest of £43.21 from Developers’ 
Contributions for previously approved projects as follows:-  

(a) Contributions to planting scheme at Mortimer Road/High Street - 
£983.50;  

(b) Pudbrook Open Space/Mortimer Road landscape improvements - 
£1,138.61;  

(c)  Pudbrook open space - interpretation panels/signage and contribution 
to new pathway - £5,502.45;  

(d)  Contributions to renovations of war memorial and market hall clock - 
£2,550.45;   and 

(4) Notes the Chairman’s approval of £1,445.66 to fund remedial works on 
Council land near Hickory Gardens. 

 
 

Summary 
 
The recommended funding will support projects which will meet identified local needs. The 
projects will also contribute to the achievement of corporate priorities. 
 
Statutory Powers 
 
Section 1 Localism Act 2011 

 

35

Agenda Item 8



 

 Defibrillators  

1. During the last year, this Committee has been working in partnership with the 
Hedge End Town Council and Botley and West End Parish Councils to install 
defibrillators in locations across the local area. The Committee approved 
funding for four defibrillators in March 2015 and these units have been 
installed. 

 
2. At a recent meeting of the Dowd’s Farm Residents’ Association, there was a 

query about installing another defibrillator at the Salvation Army Community 
Centre. The Centre Manager is receptive to this idea and would ensure that 
the daily checks are carried out. 

 
3. The Head Teacher of Wellstead School has also contacted the Council and 

requested a defibrillator. He has said that if the defibrillator was installed at the 
school, it could be accessed at all times.  

 
4. Another site to consider in the Grange Park area is Hedge End Train Station. 

Currently over half a million passengers use the train station and the 
immediate area is well populated. However South West trains have not been 
approached regarding the day to day management of the defibrillator or any 
match funding.  

 
5. Given that the next Committee meeting is not until June, it is proposed that 

members agree that either Wellstead School or the Community Centre is the 
location for one defibrillator and that South West Trains are approached 
concerning the train station.  
 

6. Two defibrillators with external cabinets and electrical installation would 
require funding of £3,800. 

 

Hedge End United FC Under 9s 
 
7. The Council’s Sports Development Manager has received an application for a 

small sports grant of £250 from the Chairman of Hedge End United Football 
Club. 

 
8. The Club is in its infancy and the Chairman is applying for assistance with the 

purchase of equipment, practise bibs, footballs and training aids. The Club is 
not a splinter group as many of the players also play for other local clubs.  

 
9. The Sports Development Manager believes this will be a good voluntary local 

club who are working towards charter standard with a bank account, 
constitution and codes of conduct already in place. 
 

10. The Club plans to train at King’s Copse School and enter a team into the 
Eastleigh and District Mini Soccer League. 

 
11. Match funding of £250 from this Committee is proposed as this will enable the 

Club to fund the set up costs mentioned previously.  

36



 

 
Botley community investment programme projects 

12. At the local area committee meeting in March 2015, the following projects 
were identified and developers’ contributions were allocated as follows:- 

13. i. Contributions to planting scheme at Mortimer Road/High Street   -- £983.50 
(and £4.18 interest) 

OS   C/11/69199  Clarendon Properties Ltd, c/o Preston Redman 
Solicitors, Marks Farm, Church Lane, Botley - £459.77 
OS   F/12/71186  Burton Property Ltd, Thaxted, Winchester Road, 
Botley - £523.73 

14. ii. Pudbrook Open Space/Mortimer Road landscape improvements - 
£1,138.61(and £4.84 interest) 
 

OS F/10/68318 First Wessex, Cheping Gardens & Mortimer Road, 
Botley - £56.02 
OS C/11/69199 Clarendon Properties Ltd, c/o Preston Redman 
Solicitors, Marks Farm, Church Lane, Botley - £1,082.59 (part) 

  
15. iii. Pudbrook open space - interpretation panels/signage and contribution to 

new pathway - £5,502.45 (and £23.36 interest) 
 

OS   C/11/69199  Clarendon Properties Ltd, c/o Preston Redman 
Solicitors, Marks Farm, Church Lane, Botley - £2,572.10 
OS   F/12/71186  Burton Property Ltd, Thaxted, Winchester Road, 
Botley - £ 2,930.35 

 
16. iv. Contributions to renovations of war memorial and market hall clock - 

£2,550.45 (and £10.83 in interest) 
 

DC   C/11/69199  Clarendon Properties Ltd, c/o Preston Redman 
Solicitors, Marks Farm, Church Lane, Botley - £2,550.45 
 

17. The formal approval of this expenditure is now requested and the schemes will 
be progressed in consultation with local ward members and Botley Parish 
Council. 

Hickory Gardens  

18. Following a site visit to flooded Council land at the back of Hickory Gardens, a 
decision was taken to excavate the existing ditch and alter its direction away 
from the end property. The total cost of this work is £1,445.66.  Due to the 
urgency of these works, the Chair has approved this expenditure. The 
Committee is asked to note this decision. 

37



 

Financial Implications 

19. There is sufficient funding within Hedge End, West End and Botley (HEWEB) 
revenue budgets and reserves to afford the stated projects.  

20. The developers’ contributions for projects in the Botley area have previously 
been allocated. 

Risk Assessment 

21. This Committee is only providing funding for the majority of the projects and 
therefore has no responsibility for on-going maintenance of operational 
management.  Any projects which are carried out by the Council’s Direct 
Services will be in accordance with health and safety legislation and good 
practice.  

Equality and Diversity Implications 

22. The Council has a General duty under the Equality Act 2010 of ‘eliminating 
discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, and fostering good relations 
between different people’. Funding allocations for projects in this report do not 
directly relate (either positively or negatively) to specific groups with ‘protected 
characteristics’ but will benefit all parts of the community. Therefore an 
Equality Impact Assessment has not been carried out. 

Conclusion 

23. All of the identified projects will benefit the community within the HEWEB area 
and therefore the proposed expenditure is recommended for approval and 
noting in the case of Hickory Gardens. 

JULIA BIRT 
Area Co-ordinator – Hedge End, West End & Botley 

 
Date: 5 March 2016 
Contact Officer: Julia Birt 
Tel No: 023 8068 8437 
e-mail: Julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: None 
Report No: AC905JB 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information: None 

38



 

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Monday 21 March 2016 

HEDGE END TRAIN STATION AREA PARKING PROPOSALS  

Report of the Area Co-ordinator in consultation with the Head of 
Transportation and Engineering 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that this Committee:  

(1) Notes the update regarding parking restrictions in the surrounding roads of 
Hedge End Train station; 

(2) Approves the revocation of the remaining roads in the traffic regulation 
order; and 

(3) Notes the comments regarding a new section of Cheltenham Gardens and 
inclusion of this road in the Committee’s annual review of traffic regulation 
priorities. 

 

Summary 
 
This report provides an update for members following the Committee report dated 12 
January 2015 concerning the Hedge End train station area parking proposals. The 
implementation of agreed restrictions has been successful and members are 
recommended to revoke the remainder of the traffic regulation order. Members will need to 
consider a new section of Cheltenham Gardens and whether this should be restricted as 
part of its annual review of traffic priorities.   
 
Statutory Powers 
 
Section 42 Highways Act 1980; 

Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; 

The Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996; 
Traffic Management Act 2004; 

Agreement dated 30 March 2009 between Hampshire County Council and Eastleigh 
Borough Council by virtue of Section 19 of the Local Government Act 2000 and the Local 
Authorities (Arrangements and Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations 2000 and 
by virtue of Section 1 of the Local Authorities (Goods and Services) Act 1970. 

39

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 Hedge End Station Area Parking Proposals  

1. A report about proposed restrictions in the roads around Hedge End train 
station was prepared for the Hedge End, West End and Botley Committee 
meeting on 12 January 2015. These roads were Martley Gardens, 
Cheltenham Gardens, Stanier Way, Garratt Close, Gresley Gardens, Watkin 
Road, St Lawrence Close, Repton Gardens, Malvern Gardens.  
 

2. The report summarised the comments received with regard to the proposals. 
After consideration members made a decision to implement restrictions in 
those roads that that were experiencing commuter parking and those that did 
not receive a significant amount of objections. These were Watkin Road, 
Stanier Way and Martley Gardens. All other roads were put on review and 
could be implemented (after consultation with residents) relatively quickly for 
up to 18 months.  
 

3. Garratt Close has been to date the only road that has had restrictions 
implemented during the review period as parking had moved here after the 
Stanier Way restrictions were implemented. 
 

4. At the committee meeting, it was also agreed that the traffic team would report 
back after a 12 month period. The restrictions have been in force since 
February 2015. To date, the only road that officers have received concerns 
about is Cheltenham Gardens. The area of highway in question was not 
included in the original scheme and would therefore require a new traffic 
regulation order.  
 

5. It is recommended that all other roads that were included in this order are 
revoked before the 18 month period and new requests for restrictions form 
part of a new project to include the section of Cheltenham Gardens that had 
not been a problem when the initial area was considered by ward members. 

Financial Implications 

6. There are no financial implications associated with the recommendations in 
this report. 

Risk Assessment 

7. This Committee will consider the section of road identified in Cheltenham 
Garden as part of its annual review of traffic regulation priorities. It may decide 
that this is not a priority. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

8. The Council has a General duty under the Equality Act 2010 of ‘eliminating 
discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, and fostering good relations 
between different people’. The recommendations in this report do not directly 

40



 

relate (either positively or negatively) to specific groups with ‘protected 
characteristics’ but will benefit all parts of the community. Therefore an 
Equality Impact Assessment has not been carried out. 

Conclusion 

9. In summary the restrictions that have been implemented have worked as 
envisaged with only a section of Cheltenham Gardens now being reported as 
a problem.  

 

 
 

JULIA BIRT 
Area Co-ordinator – Hedge End, West End & Botley 

 
 

Date: 5 March 2016 
Contact Officer: Julia Birt 
Tel No: 023 8068 8437 
e-mail: Julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: None 
Report No: AC907JB 
 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information: 

None 

41



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Planning Application - Land north and east of Boorley Green, Botley, Southampton, SO32 2BX
	8 Funding for Local Projects
	9 Hedge end Train Station Area Parking Proposals

